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P U B L I C  H E A R I N G / W O R K I N G  S E S S I O N  M E M O R A N D U M  
 
DATE:   July 7, 2017  

MEETING DATE: July 11, 2017 

TO:   Land Use Committee of the City Council 

FROM:   Barney S. Heath, Director of Planning and Development  
   Neil Cronin, Senior Planner 
 
CC:   Petitioner 
 
In response to issues raised at the City Council public hearing, the Planning Department is providing 
the following information for the upcoming continued public hearing/working session.  This 
information is supplemental to staff analysis previously provided at the public hearing.   

PETITION #132-17         Lagrange Street/Kessler Woods 

Request for Special Permit/Site Plan Approval to amend Board Order #102-06(15) to locate the 
inclusionary units off site at 219 Commonwealth Avenue. 

The Land Use Committee opened the public hearing on this petition on Tuesday, June 13, 2017 and 
held the hearing open.  At that hearing, the petitioner submitted a revised affordability program for 
the units to be created at 219 Commonwealth Avenue (Attachment A).  The major differences in the 
revised schedule are that all two-bedroom units will be available to households earning up to 65% of 
the Area Median Income (AMI), and that the unit sizes for the two-bedroom units have been 
increased to be more comparable with the two-bedroom units required at Kessler Woods (now 
known as Hancock Estates).  As a result, the total number of units at 219 Commonwealth Avenue has 
decreased from 29 to 28. 
 

Table 1: Hancock Estates Unit Mix 
 

Unit Type 
Total Number of Units 

in Development 

Number of 
Affordable 

Units Average Sq. Ft. 
One-Bedroom 34 5 893 sq. ft. 
Two Bedroom 54 8 1,000 sq. ft.  
Total Units 88 13 NA 
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Table 2: Revised Commonwealth Avenue Mix 
 

Unit Type 
Total Number of Units 

in Development 

Number of 
Affordable 

Units 
Average Sq. Ft. 

(Affordable Units) 
One-Bedroom 20 11 507 sq. ft. 
Two Bedroom 8 8 864 sq. ft.  
Total Units 29 19 NA 

 
The Planning Department notes that the revised schedule still does not create units available to 
households earning up to 50% of AMI.  For comparison, Board Order #102-06(15) requires the 
creation of six units (two one-bedroom units and four two-bedroom units) at this affordability level at 
Hancock Estates.  The petitioner’s attorney states that this project is incumbent upon financing via 
the State’s Workforce Housing Program (Attachment B).  This program aims to subsidize housing for 
families earning between 61% and 120% of AMI; a population not typically targeted by housing 
programs.  The Planning Department has asked the petitioner to consider whether units at the 50% 
level can be created via an exception within the Workforce Housing Program or created outright by 
the petitioner. 
 
Additionally, staff notes that 5.11.7.A of the NZO states that, ‘Inclusionary Units have habitable space 
of not less than 650 square feet for a 1-bedroom unit and an additional 300 square feet for each 
additional bedroom”.  Staff notes four of the proposed five one-bedroom units, and seven of the 
proposed eight two-bedroom units at the 65% level do not meet this threshold.  Of the units 
proposed at the 80% affordability level, five of the six units do not meet this threshold, and five of the 
nine proposed units at the 100% affordability do not meet this threshold.  The Planning Department 
recognizes the difficulties involved in remodeling the historic structure, but encourages the petitioner 
to meet the square footage requirements for the inclusionary units.  Please note, staff treated studios 
as 1-bedroom apartments for the criterion outlined above. 
 
The petitioner has asked the Planning Department to consider engaging an independent consultant 
capable of both reviewing the petitioner’s balance sheet regarding the expected financial gain from 
locating the inclusionary units at 219 Commonwealth Avenue and providing an evaluation of the pros 
and cons of the options before the City in light of best practices in affordable housing development in 
Massachusetts and throughout the nation.  The Department has agreed to this approach and is 
working with the petitioner to select an appropriate consultant.  Staff is expecting to provide the 
Committee with an update during the next scheduled hearing on Tuesday, July 11th.  The petitioner 
has also provided a written response to questions asked at the public hearing (Attachment C). 
 
Additionally, the Committee asked staff to examine whether this section of the Inclusionary Zoning 
Ordinance has been utilized in the past, and if so, in what capacity.  Staff consulted the Deputy City 
Solicitor and a prior staff member of the City’s Law Department.  Those discussions revealed that 
locating units off site was common practice established by the City’s first Inclusionary Housing 
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Ordinance in 1979.  This practice was in effect until 1987 when the Inclusionary Housing Ordinance 
was amended and the offsite option was removed because developers often located the inclusionary 
units in certain areas of the City and the created units did not have to be provided in perpetuity.  For 
an example, please see Condition #7.d Of Board Order #808-76(2) (Attachment D).  The Inclusionary 
Housing Ordinance was amended again in 2003 and the offsite option was reintroduced.  However, 
staff has not found an approved project which utilized the offsite option under the ordinance. 
 
Lastly, staff noted that the structure at 219 Commonwealth Avenue is on the National Register of 
Historic Places, which limits modifications to existing historical buildings.  Since the petitioner is 
proposing to finance the project with funds from Mass Housing, Newton Historical Commission 
review was required for the proposed Accessible entrance and repairs to the stucco and brick 
cladding.  At its June 22, 2017 meeting, the NHC approved the improvements based on the proposed 
plans. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment A: Revised 219 Commonwealth Avenue Affordability Mix 
Attachment B: Massachusetts State Workforce Housing Program Brochure 
Attachment C: Petitioner’s Response to Public Hearing Comments 
Attachment D: Board Order #808-76(2) 

 



219 Commonwealth Avenue - 28 Unit Scenario  - OPTION 2 6/5/2017

Unit Unit Type # BR SF Level of Aff. Affordable Rent

5 1 1 661 65% $1,261

25 1 1 554 65% $1,261

35 1 1 572 65% $1,261

41 1 1 454 65% $1,261

45 1 1 444 65% $1,261

1 2 2 753 65% $1,513

4 2 2 743 65% $1,513

16 2 2 1,050 65% $1,513

12 2 2 915 65% $1,513

20 2 2 806 65% $1,513

24 2 2 795 65% $1,513

30 2 2 926 65% $1,513

34 2 2 926 65% $1,513

Subtotal 65% 13 21 9,599 65% $1,416 AVG

11 studio 1 308 80% $1,448

15 studio 1 311 80% $1,448

3 1 1 698 80% $1,552

21 1 1 538 80% $1,552

22 1 1 520 80% $1,552

26 1 1 523 80% $1,552

Subtotal 80% 6 6 2,898 80% $1,517 AVG

Subtotal 80% or less 19 27 12,497 70% AVG $1,448 AVG

10 1 1 523 100% $1,939

14 1 1 522 100% $1,939

32 1 1 516 100% $1,939

36 1 1 524 100% $1,939

31 1 1 574 100% $1,939

40 1 1 789 100% $1,939

42 1 1 652 100% $1,939

44 1 1 784 100% $1,939

46 1 1 682 100% $1,939

Subtotal 100% 9 9 5,566 100% $1,939 AVG

TOTAL 28 36 18,063 79% AVG $1,606 AVG

“In addition to the need for housing for households earning less than 80% (AMI) there is growing need 

across the greater Boston region and in Newton to create “Middle Income” housing. Middle-income 

households are those earning between 80% - 120% AMI, which traditional housing programs do not serve.” 

Note:  Unit 1 combines Unit 1 (current 1BR) and Unit 2 (current STU) to form a new 2BR, thus reducing the building from 29 units to 

28 units.

Hancock Estates has 13 units at or below 80% AMI (overall average of 65% AMI), with a total 

12,242 SF.  

Attachment A
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